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OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The govemning body present their consolidated annual report together with the financial statements and
auditor's report for Kingston Maurward College for the year ended 31 July 2022,

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of
conducting Kingston Maurward College. The Cellege is an exempt charity for the purposes of the Charities
Act 2011,

The College is based cne mile east of Dorchesier centred around the Grade | listed Kingston Maurward
House and includes classical Grade II” listed gardens and parkland. The College offers a wide range of full
and part lime courses and specialises in land-based and related subjects. As part of its educational role, the
Callege runs a 750 acre mixed farm, equestrian cantre and countryside visitor attractions, including a formal
garden and animal park. The College has opened an Eslate shop supporting intemships for studants with
learning disabilities and additional catering outlels. The Georgian House and grounds are hired out for
educational conferences, functions, events and weddings.

Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives

Following the completion of the 2017-2022 strategic plan, the Corporation of Kingston Maurward College
has reviewed the strategic focus of the College and Estate over a short-term window of 3 years. This is
being produced at a time of uncertainty, with the effects of the War in Ukraine and other factors such as
Brexit still to be defined. Over the life of this plan the College saw continued 16-18 number growth and
significant capital investment, improved brand position and a significant improvement in strategic
partnerships and profile. The decline in numbers seen prior to the 2017-2022 plan was reversed and the
College moved to 'Good” financial health in 2018/18, reduced staff turnover and improved culture and
values. However, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have triggered significant financial challenges
which give rise o a need for a review of provision and also corporate focus and the acceleration of estate
strategy. The College is small and has significant reliance on Commercial Income fo meet the costs of the
Estate. The following plan will ensure sustainable growth, increased financial resilience and a development
of parinership working to enhance opportunity for students in the county of Dorset and beyond. Kingston
Maurward will become a leading College in the Scuth-west, serve the needs of industries and businesses
in Dorset, and enable all students 1o thrive,

The College's Core Stralegic Values are;

= Inspire
= Challenge
- Care

We work in an inspiring environment, where we love our work, and it adds value ta our own lives, We are
inspired by the talent and commitment of our colleagues and the abiliies of our students and use this to
buikd our own passions and in urn help inspire others,

We challenge ourselves every singie day to do the best job possible, constantly striving for excellence, We
challenge ourselves to continue leamning and developing within our roles, finding new ways to improve the
experience of every visitor and pariner of the Collage.

We are a community. We work tegether and combine the talents of individeals to create a greater whole as
part of a leam. We look out for each other. We find the best way to support our students and collsagues,
and work as close-knit leams so everyone feels part of the Kingston Maurward family and shares in its
SUCCESS.
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The Dorset and College Context

The College has a sub-regional catchment, with approximately half the full-ime siudentis coming from the
conurbation of Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole, The Dorset economy and geography is roughly split
equally between the urban and rural and the intake of the College matches this, despite its rural location.
Many students travel over an hour each way to attend. The economy of the county refiect this, with large
scale financial companies and high tech manufacturing (rather than heavy industry) and the predominately
enfrepreneurial small businesses of the rural area.

Within the county 98% of businesses have fewer than 250 employees, and the College will provide a broad
curriculum o match this equally broad need. However, as a college with a strong focus on the natural world,
this plays into the strengths of Dorset and curriculum inteni clearly matches the needs of the area. This is
explicit in Local Skills Plans and the work of the College with Dorset LEP, which recognises that as a region
with extensive rural, coastal and maritime areas, the natural environment is a key driver which supports a
thriving economy in both rural and urban districts. As a college we are committed 1o delivering skills to
support economic growth which is not al the expense of, but enhances, our natural environment — Dorset’s
natural capital will be a key consideration in all decision making. This is in line with the Government’s Clean
Srowth Strategy and 25 Year Environment Plan as well as new Agriculture and Environment Acts For this
reason, whilst the opportunities of the environmental economy and clean growth are core to our site, a
singular focus on agricultural and allled provision is no longer appropriate as it may have been 20 years
ago, nor does this alone match the needs of the Dorsat LEP Skills Plan and Labour Market Nead. The
Caollage is responding directly to these markel forces and this will bring enhanced delivery and educational
provision, still within a rural context and couniry estate.

Our proximity to the coastline means that a full 360 catchment is constrained, as is organic growth through
a growing population. Demographics are largely fiat for this area, but changes in different age brackets
means the College has to adapt its offer accordingly.

Within the Darset Council area:

s The propostion of the population aged 65+ continues to grow; from 24% in 2009 to 28% in 2019 and a
projecisd figure of 34% in 2029,

# Inconfrast Dorsel’s working age (16-64) population continues to fall; dropping by 7,700 batween 2008
and 2019 and projected to drop by a further 4,200 by 2029,

= Similarly, the population of Dorsed's children continues to decline; falling by 500 between 2009 and
2019 and projected to drop by a further 3,500 This means that the College needs to widen its reach,
baoth in terms of curriculum offer but also in the range and extent of pathways from Entry Level through
to Higher Education. There is a significant deficiency in HE prograssion in rural Dorset (36% vs 42%
far England, 2019} and this is amplified for those from low income familles (17% vs 26% for England,
2019). The current proportion of those with just an NV 4+ in Dorset Local Authority Area is 36.4%
compared to an average of 40.0%. This amounts o a raw gap of 7,236 working age people compared
to the rest of England. Intervention was required and the capital investment provides this with sirong
local and political support. The succassful compeditive bid and build of the new £3.5M University and
Business Hub gives the first dedicated university centre in the rural authority, and this allows both
increased partnership working but also the ability for the College to make a greater impact on social
mabliity and lifelong learning. There s thus both a social and economic imperative to enhance Dorset's
higher technical and academic firepower,

The College recognises there has been slippage in some aspects of previous objectives. In particutar,
significant events oulside the control of the Gollege may impact on its abilty to achieve or maintain some
specific objectives. This has been the case with Covid-19 and is properly reflected in the College Risk
Management plan. However, the College has achieved huge success in 2021122 despite the financial
pressures, not least of which are the excellent Ofsted Inspection cutcome of summer 2022, the awarding of
a Sikver Gilt at RHS Chelsea for cur garden, and the effective completion of two major capital builds
programmes.
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Financial objectives
Performance against financial resilience objectives is summarised as follows:

= Financial health rating of at least ‘Good’ — not achieved during 2021-22 (as a result loss of income
due to Covid-18)

+ Meet requirements of bank covenants — not achieved during 2021-22 (as a result loss of income due
to Covid-19)

« Meet Dorset Area Review criteria:
o Operating surplus of 3% or greater by 2020 - not achleved
o Borrowing as a % of Incorne at less than 40% - achieved (23%)
o Staff Costs as a % of turnover below 65% - achieved (57%)
o Cument ratio greater than 1 = not achieved

« To further diversify the College revenue sireams to hedge against further unpredictable events,
While investment has been made in non-academic revenue streams, the income from these has
been stalled by the on-set of Covid-19 and the resulting lockdowns. We expect thesa income areas
to show substantial improvement post pandemic.

Due to continued restricions caused by Covid-19 the College was forced to close down several revenue
generating areas during the previpus financial year in question, and had restrictions on scale and scopa of
events, such as weddings, running into this. The College has lost much of its commercial income since
March 2020 due to government restrictions on trade and this amounts to a significant deficit on budgeted
income which continued to lag into the 2021/22 financial year. During the lalter part of the year commercial
operations resumed to full capacity and look positive going forward,

Curriculum delivery resumed face to face from Seplember 2022 and this has meant a strong year of
curriculum performance including the later Ofsted outcome.

Resources
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

The College employs 257 siaff (expressed as full-ime equivalents), of which &1 are employed as teaching
staff and 176 are employed in support functions and activities relating to the College's commercial activities,

The College enrolled approximately 752 full time students with an increase of 3.4% in 16-18 ('sixth form')
age students, which did not meet the KPI of 5%. The College's student population includes 16-t0-19 year
old students, apprentices, higher education students and over 19 adult learners.

The Group has £2, 502k of net assets (2020021 net labilities (£6,586k). This positive position is due to a
decrease in defined benefit obligations. This includes £2 581k pension liability (2020021 £12,089k) a
decrease of £9,518k in the actuarial Kability valuation.

Tanglble resources include the main College estate comprising of 750 acres, and an extensive range of
buildings providing teaching and learming resources, practical workshops, offices, conference facilities,
sludent accommeodation and farm buildings. The value of the Estate as presented in these financial
statements is not representative of its true market value, as the College did not choose to revalue as at 1
August 2014 under the provisions of FRS 102,

The College has a good and developing reputation locally, reglonally and nationally. Maintaining a quality
brand is essential for the College's success at atiracting students and external relationships. The College
Principal is on the Board of the Dorset Local Enterprise Parinership and is a key player in driving the nural
agenda for the whole of the South West Region, where he also sits as Chair of Dorset Careers Hub Steering
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Group, Chair of the Dorset Local Nature Partnership and Member of Dorset AONB board, as well as roles
across the region such as the Great South West LEP Steering Group,

Stakeholders

The College has many stakeholders including:

+  Current, fulure and past studanis;

= Staff and their trade unions;

= The Education Skills and Funding Agency, the Offica for Students and other professional bodies in the
sectors where | works,

+»  The employers it works wilh,
Partner schools and universities; the wider college community, and
The kacal borough council, combined authority and Local Enterprise Parinership

Public Benefit

Kingston Maurward College is an exempt charity undear the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and i regulated
by the Secretary of State for Education, The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the
charily, are disclosed on page 1. In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Governing
Body has had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its
supplementary guidance on the advancement of education,

In dalivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of
education to around 1,500 students, including 138 with high neads. The College provides courses without
charge to young people, 1o those who are unemployed and adults taking English and maths courses. The
College adjusts s courses to mest the needs of local employers and provides training to over 120
apprentices. The College is committed to providing information, advice and guidance fo students it enrols
and to finding suitable courses for s many students as possible regardiess of their educational background.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

The College, along with most colleges in the country and especially the land-based sector, had a difficult
year, This was primarily due to the impact of Covid-19 and it affected mainky the commercial and other
income streams. The detall of the finance results is shown in the financial statements and is summarised
bedow.

Financial Results

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source,
largely from recurrent grants, In 2021722 the funding bodies provided 52% (2020/21 55%) of the College
Group's total income.

The group was heavily impactad by COVID-18 and this ked to the generation of a deficit (before a gain an
disposal of assets) of £1,710k in the year (2020/21 deficit of £2,252k).

During the year, the College received a clawback assessment from the ESFA regarding its historical
apprenticeship delivery. In 2020-21, the College had received notification that the ESFA's funding auditors
considerad that the College did not hold sufficient recards to comply with the 209% off the job training criteria.
Az a result, the ESFA would seek fo recover 100% of the funding it had provided the College for these
learners dating back to the year 201718, which amounied to a clawback of £E851k. During 2022-23, the
ESFA issued a further assessment for subsequent completing apprentices and the return of 100% of their
funding. This figure amounted to £413k. Due o the fiming of the netification, this additional clawback has
been charged into 2021/22's accounts. The malter remains subject 1o ongoing dispute,

The final set of significant transactions during the year relates to VAT repaymants from HMRC. For a number
of years, the College has held 3 distinct claims against HMRC based on a differing approach 1o calculating
the College’s VAT partial exemption parcentage. During the last 12 months two tranches of repayments
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have been made by HMRC. In Movember and December 2022, the College recelved £571k and then in
Seplember 2023 the College received a further £860k. Both of these sets of receipts are subject to an
agency fea deduction. £1,301k of income has been recognised in 2021-22 with the balance of £130k being
recognised in 2022-23.

Included within the College Group's net assets of E2,502k are cash balances of E452k (2020721 £1,009%).

The College has experienced an increase in its reserves position as at 31 July 2022 compared with 31 July
2021. This position follows an actuarial valuation resulting in a positive impact of £9,518k.

Tangible fied assats held at the year-end amounted to £20,571k split between land £14,277k, assels in
course of construction £5,360k and equipment purchased of E834k.

The College secured and delivered the outeomes of two large capital grants in year, one from Salix (£2.1m
for a ground source heat pump solution) and the other from the Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership (£3.5m
for the building of a University Centre and Rural Hub). The capital grants fully funded the projects hence
there was no malched funding required and cashflow was managed carefully io ensure the College's liquidity
was maintained successfully. Both projects completed In summaer 2022,

Covid-19

The impacts of Covid-19 were significant on the College's financial infrastructure and performance and
continue to be felt during this financial year. Due to government restrictions on trade, the commercial areas
of the college had to largely close, and many staff placed on furlough and not funded from the ESFA funds
during 2021722, and it was not until Christmas 2021 that we felt able to fully operate commercial activities
as normal. This transition to recovery phase meant the re-employment of staff and an increase in cost base
which was a mitigating factor in previous years. These impacts mitigated but did not completely alleviate
the: harm to budget income vs expenditure.

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, its banking, money market and
capital market transaclions; the effective confrol of risks associated with those activities; and the pursult of
optimurm performance consistent with those risks. The College has a separate treasury management policy
in place.

Shert term bofrowing for temparary revenue purposes i authorised by the Accounting Officer. All ather
borrowing requires the authorisation of the Corporation and shall comply with the requirements of the
Financial Memorandurm.

Cash flow and liquidity

The net cash inflow from operating activities was £5k (2020/21 £189k),

The size of the College's total borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been calculated to ensure a
reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cashfiow,

Whilst Covid-19 had a profound impact on loss of income for commercial activities during lockdown, the
coliege managed to maintain working capital and did not need any additional external financial suppor of
short term borrowing during 2021722,

Developments
The College was successhul in gaining capital investment for future year's accounting, such as £3.5m grant
funding from the LEP for a new University and Business Hub, and £2.1m SALIX grant for decarbonisation

of the estate. Both these grants required no maich from the college and will significantly benefit both the
oppartunity and sustainability of the institution going forward,

&
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Reserves

The group has accumulated negative income and expenditure reserves of £1, 768k (202021 (E10,875kK))
and cash balances of E452k (2020021 E1,000k), The group wishes to continue to accumulate positive
reserves and cash balances in order to create a contingency fund to meet future capial requirements.

Sources of incoma

The group has significant reliance on the educaton sector funding bodies for its principal funding source,
largely from recurrent grants. In 202172022, ESFA provided 52% of the group’s total income (2020621 55%).

Group Companies

The College has one subsidiary company, Kingston Maurward Enterpnses Limited, of which the principal
activity is organising conference events and managemeant of Kingsion Maurward Gardens and Animal Park,
Surpluses generated by KME Limited are transferred to the College under deed of covenant. In the currant
year, the surplus generaled was E260% (2021722 deficit £30k).

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Future developments

Two major capital projects started in year. The first is a £3.5m University Cenire and Rural Hub which is
fully grant funded through a Dorsel Local Enterprise grant. The second is a £2.1m project lo implement a
ground source heat pump solution for a proportion of the college estate, enabling a rapid shift to carbon
neutrality, alongside the stated Strategic Aim of becoming Met Zero by 2025. Both projects completed in
summer 2022

The College has a fully approved Estate Master Plan, working closaly with the Local Authority so that is
plans will be incorporated within the owverall Local Plan which is cumantly in consuliation, Relationships with
planners and statutory bodies such as Historic England are excellent.

In order to achieve an underlying position which is batter than break even, excluding the impact of FRS 102
pension costs, further cost efficiencies will need to be found with the real emphasis being on the growth of
commercial income as weall as student number growth, 1 will always be a high priovity to reach out for capital
funding from the LEP and the DME, although the current govermmential review of

LEPs suggest future capital will primarily come from central government as well as local authorities. 202223
is expected io be a difficult year, after which the College should start to reap the reward of its careful strategic

positioning.

The College aims o increase confribution by continuing to implement efficiency opportuniies across the
caollege site, The College aims to reduce depandency on the Education and Skills Funding Agency and will
continue to develop a number of opportunities in relation 1o its commerclal income.

This will include improving the profitabilty of its farm operabions, developing the income generation from the
park and gardens, and further developing the use of its facilities for weddings and conferences.

Financial plan

The college govermors approved a financial ptan in July 2022 which sats objectives for the period fo 2023,
The College updated the financial forecast in November 2022, This updated forecast notes a deficit in 2022-
23, The College has taken the strategic decision to cease apprenticeships in December 2022, the nef loss
of income belng the primary reason for the deficit forecast for 2022-23.
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Commercial income is forecasted to increase next year, with the full recovery from COVID, although the
College notes the volatile nature of inflationary pressures during the period of wriling these accounts and
the impact this may have on consumer confidence as the purchasing power thereain,

Treasury policies and objectives

The College has treasury management arrangements in place to manage cash flows, banking arrangements
and the risks associated with those activities. There has been no requirement for additional short-term
borrowing in the year. All long-term borrowing requires the specific authorisation of the Corporation. The
College consolidated loans in the new financial year, The consolidation included the CBILs loan, NatWest
loan and Barclay's loans. This is explained further in nofe 18 to the accounts,

Reserves Policy

The College Reserves Policy seeks to increase cash resources to deliver a target of cash days of three
months, current ratio in excess of 1, gearing ratio of less than 20% and performance ratio in excess of 4%
Tao date the Collage has not managed fo attain the desired level of reserves,

The College currently holds no restricted reserves,

Itis the Corporation's intention to increase reserves over the life of the Strategic Plan, through the generation
of annual operating surpluses,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all
that it does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability.
The governing body has overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to managing risks and
internal controls is explained in the Stalement of Corporate Governance.

The Risk Management Group undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the College is
exposed, kentifying systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate
any potential impact on the College. The intemal controls are then implemented and are reviewed annually
for their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions, In addition (o

the annual review, the Risk Management Group will also consider any risks which may arise from new areas
of work being undertaken by the College,

A risk register s maintained at the College level which is reviewed on a regular basis by the Risk
Management Group and the Audit & Assurance Committee. The risk register identifies the key risks, the
likalihood of thosa risks occurring, their patential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce
and mitigate the risks. Risks are priorilised using a consistent sconing system,

The main risk factors affecting the College are oullined below along with the action taken to minimise them,
Not all of the factors are within the College's control.  Other faclors besides those listed below may also
adversely affect the College.

1. Financial Viability

In comman with all public sector organisations the College is managing the financial impact of static student
funding levels over many years and although an increase of less than 5.0% was announced in 2021 this
does not close the gap and there is nothing yet announced for subsequent years. The relatively small size
of the arganisation puts additional pressure on the College in respanding to these challenges. |n particular,
management of the Collage’s cashfiow is crucial in ensuring the overall viability of the organisation is
maintained, including delivering at least a satisfaciory health rating and adhering o the bank covenants,
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This risk is mitigated by:

Budgets set and closely managed for all areas of activity,

Detailed cash flow management and forecasting,

Financial forecast sensitivity analysis;

Manthly financial reports o Corporation/Finance and Resources Committee;
Focus on developing profitable new income opportunifies;

Increased focus on resource management across the College; and

Internal and external audit processes,

2. Safequarding and Data Protection

The College has a good safeguarding and data protection record, however the type and range of activibes
undertaken mean that this remains a significant area of focus for the organisation. In

addiion, the natura and the extent of the campus and the diversily of our student profile particularly in ferms
of age and vulnerability, present specific safeguarding issues. Impleamentation of the General Data
Protection Regulations {GDPR) in 2018 require that all personal data held by the College is managed
securely in accordance with this legislation,

This risk is mitigated by:

Safeguarding and Data Protection policies and procedurnes;

Appoiniment of a Data Profection Officer

Safeguarding Officers hold appropriate qualifications;

Safeguarding Commitles, which monitors best practice;

Training on Safequarding and Data Protection for all staff, reinforced on an annual basis;

All new staff having a DBS in place prior to commencemeants and a number of key existing staff having
DBS checks carried oul every three years;

Clualified link governor who altends most internal meelings;

Safeguarding included in the SAR and Annual Reports presented to Corporation;

Robust HR recruitment processes; and

Links maintained with external agencies such as the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board, Social
Sanvices and the Police.

" " ® ® B @

3, Student Recruitment and retention

A decline in student recruitment would impact on finances from the ESFA under the current funding
methodolegy as fulure allocalions are based parily on historical student numbers.

This risk is mitigated by:

& comprehensive marketing strategy including schools Baison and taster courses;
Applications monitoring and monthly reporting;

Employer Engagemeant Strateqgy;

Apprenticeship Growth Flan;

Regular management information system reports; and

Senlor management leam review.

Other kay risks include:

»  Failure lo maintain or improve commercial income;

Failure to maintain or improve on the Good OFTSED raling;

Failure io maximise apprenticeship income;

Faillure to maintain or improve the quality of teaching and leaming;

Failure to source capital funding for developing and maintaining the College estate.
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Kay risks assocmated with Covid-19;
¢ Lockdown of college
o Cessation of all commercial acfivities, loss of income
o Cessation of all adult education, loss of income
Staff absence due fo illness
+ Failure to facilitate open days due to lockdown

These risks are to some extent mitigated by:

Rigorous hygiene control

Implementation of government initiatives re pandemicfinfectious diseases
Availabifity of on line leaming if required

Staff and students laking lateral flow tests twice weekly

Key staff cover contingency plans

Facilitate on line open events

- & s W

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key performance indicator Measure/Target Actual for 2021/22 |
| Student number targets (16-19) 5% +3%
| Student achievemenl/progression B85% B5%
| Operating surplus/EBITDA as % of income 2.25% -4.2%
Staff satisfaction (via survey) 85+ NIA
| Ofsted rating Good Good
Student Achievements

As a specialist land-based provider the College has a good reputation across Dorset and surrounding areas
and many of its students travel significant distances to atlend. The curriculum offered is extensive in
supporting land-based related activities and is constantly being reviewed in order to meet student needs
better and ensure onward destinations are positive and relevant.

The College has a breadth of provision with clear progression routes from Entry level to Higher Education.
It provides a good range of vocational courses for studenis aged 16-18 and a varigty of both part-time and
full-time programmes for adult students in land-based and other sectors, particularly Construction, Waelding,
Sport, Uniformed Public Servicas and Cutdoor Adwventure,

The College continues 1o deliver and develop higher education programmes in collaboration with the Royal
Agricultural University and Bournemaouth University.

The College has a broad range of excellent parinerships and cutstanding relationships with local employers
which enables il to expand its presence in the region.

The College is a sponsor of the Dorset Studio School (DSS), whose students make full use of the College
estate and facilities for specialist learning, practical activity and exams alongside Mationa! Curriculum
aclivity. The school was graded as '‘Good' by Ofsted in iis first inspection in September 2017 with the
Inspectors noting a key strength was the school's use of the excellent resources and strong and effective
partnerships. Students attending DSS are predisposed to altend KMC and there is strong collaboration
between the school and the College.

Partnership working with the Royal Velerinary College, and other relationships with, amongst others, the
Mational Farmers’ Union (NFU), Dorset Police, Dorset Fire and Rescue, British Horse Society, British Show
Jumping, Pets at Home, the Forestry Commission, Peter Green Leisure (PGL), the Army, RAF, Royal
Marines and others, ensure that programme contents meet the need of employers.

The College was graded "Good' by Ofsted In May 2022 Residential Care Standards were graded
Outstanding in May 2019
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Outcomes for students on vocational programmes are good, with headline achievement rates on most 18-
18 Study Programmes, 18+ Adult Programmes and Apprenticeships at or above national and specialist
group averages. There are no significant achievement gaps in terms of gender, disability or ethnbcity.
Progression is good for those completing their study programmes. Students are well prepared for maving
on to their next destination, with an overall very positive progression rate to known destinations.

Student numbers

In 202122 the College has delivered activity that has produced £4,988k in funding body main aliocation
funding (202021 - £4,798). The College had 1,000 Education Skills Funding Agency funded students both
fulll time and part time (2020721 1,018).

In addition to Further Education students, the College has students in Higher Education, Apprenticeships,
Workplace Learning and fee-paying students. The College had in total approximately 445 such students in
2021722 (2020721 444).

Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November 1998,
requires colleges, in the absence of agreement to the confrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30
days of either the provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The larget
set by the treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cenl

During the accounting period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022, based on a sample the College paid 85 per
cant of its invoices within 30 days. The College incurred no interest charges in respact of late payment for
this pericd.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

Equality

Kingston Maurward College is commitied to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who leam and work here,
The College respects and positively values differences in race, gender, sexual arientation, disability, religion
or belief and age. The College strives vigorously to remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage
and will actively combat bigotry. This policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a planned basis.
The College's Equality Policy is published on the College's website.

The College ensures compliance with all relevant equality legislation including the Equality Act 2010.

The Callege Is a ‘Disability Confident’ employer and has committed to the principles and objectives of this
standard (previously known as 'Positive About Disabled People’). The College considers all employment
applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concemed, and
guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant who meets the essential criteria for the post.

Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the
College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for
promation, which, as far as possible, provides ientical opportunithes to those of non-disablad employees.

The College has committed to the "Mindful Employer’ initiative to assist the mental health well-being of staff.

The College is also aiming to be accredited to the Committed to Equality (C2E) standard and has refreshed
its training programme for staff on Equality & Diversity.
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Disability Statemant

The Collage seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010,

The College is committed to:

Promoting equality of opportunily for disabled people;

Eliminating unkawful discrimination;

Eliminating disability related harassment:

Promating pesitive alfitudes towards disabled people;

Encouraging participation of disabled people in public life:

Taking into account disabled peaples’ disabilities, even where that invalves treating disabled people
mare favourably;

Having an admissions policy for all students which Is described in the Caollege charter. Appeals
against decision not 1o offer a place are dealt with under the complaints policy,

Having a College Equality and Diversity pack which is available to all students and staff and is included
as part of the College induction procedures;

Having in place a number of student support tutors and assistants who can provide a variety of suppart
for leaming. There is a continuing programme of staff development to ensure the provision of a high
level of appropriate support for students who have learning difficulties andfor disabilities;

Counselling and welfare services are described in the Student Guide, which is issued to students
together with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure at induction.

Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulation 2017 require the Collage to publish
infesmation on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College.

e i

Number of employees who were representatives FTE employee number

for the periad 0 -
Percentage of time Number of employees ]
0% 0 =
1-50% 0 2l
51-99% 0 =
100% 0 |
Total cost of facility time

Total pay bil

Percentage of total bill spent on facility fime

2 (22B

Time spent on paid trade union actvities a5 a
percentage of tolal paid faciity time

GOING CONCERN

The College’s current financial health grade for 2021/22 is assessed by the ESFA as Inadequate and the
College is aware of several issues which could impact on its fulure:

= achievement of several different bearner growth strategies

an inability to find further efficiency savings

increased costs arising from utility price increase and general inflation.

a decision by the ESFA not to provide further financial support

uncertainty over ils fulure may severely reduce student recruitment, which would further weaken
income andior increase stafl tumover, which could increase costs

® @ ® =
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These risks are mitigated in a number of ways:
+ Close working with the DfE, FE Commissioner, ESFA, Dorset Council, MPs and local education
institutions to agree and implement an acceptable long-term solution
Regular and open communication with ESFA
= Challenging budget setting and sensitivily analysis
» [Regular in year budget monitoring,

The College entered into an Emergency Funding agreement with the DFE on the 20 Decamber 2023. This
pravides for up to £1.5m of operational support, to be drawn as and when required.

The College is working with the ESFA and FE Commissioner in order to deliver a long-term solution to the
College's challenges and this is to be secured through & business combination with another Further
Education provider. Work is proceeding to bring this about for execution on the 1% August 2024, The
Emergency Funding agreement alse provides financial support with the business combination related costs
incurred up to the date of the execution of that solution.

The College has prepared forecasts to July 2025 which shows that, with the Emergency Funding support
agreed with the DIE, the College will hold sufficient funds to operate and pay its liabilities as they fall due up
to at least February 2025. Given this, the members of the Corporation have concluded that the College is a
going concern, and the accounts should be prepared on a going concern basis. However, there is the
existence of material uncertainty due to the possible collapse of the business combination solution. Although
the existing Emergency Funding arrangamant could sustain the College up to at least February 2025, a
further arrangement would need to be sought for the following period, and that would cast a new doubl on
the Caollege's ability ko conlinue as a gobng concerm.

EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING PERIOD

The financial performance in both 2020021 and 2021/22 meant that both MalWest and Barclays loan
covenamts wene breachad, Both loans and the CEILs loan were refinanced in September 2022 into a single
NatWest loan with the Barclays loan baing fully repaid.

Thie new NatWest secured loan for £2.49m is ower a 20-year pariod, with a capital repaymeant haliday during
the first 12 months. The impact of the new loan is positive on annual cash flow, There are no bank covenants
attached to the new loan. NatWest fully support the Caollege with new loan and there is no avidence o
suggest that MatWest would not be willing to provide support in the future,

The sale of ene non-curment assed will benefit the cash flows early in 2022-23. The sale of land at Maurward
Close is due to complete in the autumn term with receipts from the sale due in labe December 2022,

On 29th Movember 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations as public
sactor institutions. This decigion iz refrospective to April 1993, The Department for Educalion introduced
some new rules with for colleges with immediate effect. None of these rule changes have a significant impact
on Kingston Maurward Collage. The Department |s expected to continue fo review this change and issue
further gukdance over the coming 12 to 24 months. The College will also continue to keep further changes
under cansidaration,

The College is currently undertaking detalled scenario planning, modeliing and cost forecasting work with
another local Further Education Provider with a view to combining the two colleges from the 1% August 2024,
This proposition would continue to see the delivery of specialist land-based education at the Kingston
Mauraard campus.

The College entered into an Emergency Funding agreement with the DFE on the 20" December 2023. This
provides for up to £1.5m of operational support, to be drawn as and when required. The agreement also
provides financial support with the business combination related costs incurred up ko the date of the
execution of that solution.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this repert confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors are unaware; and each member
has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the College’s auditers are aware of that infarmation.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 27® February 2024 and signed on its behalf by

&l o.cu/

Robert Lasseter
Chair

-
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control
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Governance Statement

The following statement is pravided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to
obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal struciure. This statement covers the period from
1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

i.  In accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
[selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, opennass, honesty and leadership);

i,  In full accordance with the guidance fo cofleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of
Good Governancea for English Calleges (“the Code’).

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance and in particular
the College has adopted and complied with the Foundation Code.

We have not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have
reported on our Corporate Governance arrangemeants by drawing upon best practice available, including
those aspecis of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the further aducation
sector and best praclice.

In the epinion of the Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and it has complied
throughout the year ended 31 July 2022, This opinion is based on an internal review of compliance with the
Code raported to the board on 6% December 2022,

The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a
particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In carrying out its
responsibilities, it takes full account of The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges issued by the
Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted on 7 July 2015, The Corporation has also
adopted the AoC Colleges Senior Staff Remuneration Code on 5 March 2018.

THE CORFPORATION
Members of the corporation

The Members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report
were as listed in the table below:
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inanca & Resources
vedmance, Remunaration &
arch
[Miss H Crockes Fqnm B years taff Member  [Audil & Assurancs Fu
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hins £ Cundic 21 Tyear  [End of teem ;i-'?
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The governance framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standards of conduct,

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the
College togelher with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
expenditure, quality matters and personnel related matters such as health and safety and enviranmental
Issuwes. The Corporation has met 8 times this year, with further updates and urgent decisions undertaken
via the Governors” Virual Office (GVO).

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each commitiee has tarms of
reference which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Audit & Assurance, Estate,
Finance & Resources, Quality & Standards and Govemance, Remuneration & Search. Full minutes of all
meetings, except those desmed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available on the College website

www.kme.ac.uk and are also avalable from the Clerk to the Corporation at Kingston Maurward College,
Dorchester, Dorset, DTZ BPY.

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Govemors. The
register is available for inspection at the above address.
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All Governors are able o take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's
expense and have access to the Clerk of the Corporation, who s responsible to the Board for ensuring thal
all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with, The appointment, evaluation and removal of
thie Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to the Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board
meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strang and independent non-executive element, and no individual or group dominates
its decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of it non-execulive members is
independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could materally
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgemeant.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate.
Appointments to the Corporation

The Corporation has a Governance, Remuneration & Search Committes, consisting of six mambers of the
Corporation, which is responsible far the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s
consideration. The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding 3 years bul are aligible for
reappointment to a maximum of 9 years an tha recommendation of the Governance Remuneration & Search
Committes once past performance is reviewed to ensure the Corporation has the skilled meambers
necessary o carry out its functions

Corporation performance

The Corparation sell-assessment reviewed committee performance and governor attendance and training
and skills,

Overall governor attendance was 84%, 14% higher than the target set by governors, Governors also
completed an annual skills audit survey, which has provided the basis of the fulure appointments and a
training programme. The Corporation carried out a self-assessment of its own performance for the yaar
endad 312 July 2022 and graded itself as Good on the Ofsted scale.

Remuneration commitbea

The Remuneration Committes has been merged with the Search & Governance Committes. Throughout
the year ending 31% July 2022, the College’s Remuneration Committee comprised six members of the
Corporation. The Commiltee's responsibilities are to consider and approve the remuneration and benefils
of the principal, other senior post holders and the Clerk. Details of remuneration paid for the year ended 31
July 2022 are set out in note 8 to the financial statemeants.

The Committee has regard to the AoC Colleges Senior Stalf Remuneration Code adopted by the
Corparation on 8 March 2019,

Audit & Assurance Commiltee

The Audit & Assurance Committea comprises three members of the Corporation (exchuding the Principal
and Chair and members of the Finance and Resources Committee) and two co-opted members, The
Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation,

The Audit & Assurance Committee normally meels at least three times per year and provides a farum for

reporting by the College's internal awditfors, reporting accountants and financlal statements auditors, whao
have access to the Commitiee for independent discussion, without the presence of College management.
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The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE Funding Bodies as they affect the
College's business,

The College's internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and
governance processes, in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management
and the Audit & Assurance Committas,

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
undertake an annual follow up review to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit & Assurance Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal auditors,
reporting accountants and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for awdit and non-audit work
as well as reporting annually to the Carporation.

The Audit & Assurance Commiltee met twice in the year to 319 July 2022. The members of the committee
and their attendance are shown below:

Committes member Meetings attended

Mr D Knight (Chair) 212

Miss H Crocker 212

Mr & Foaot 212

Miss R King (co-opted) 12

Mr J Tirrell {co-opted) 212
INTERNAL CONTROL

Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College's system of intemal control and for reviewing its
effectivenass. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure 1o
achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss,

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
maintaining @ sound system of internal controd that supports the achievement of the College's policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safequarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him In the Funding Agreement between Kingston Maurward
College and the funding bodies. He is also responsible for reporting 1o the Corporation any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, lo evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The systern of internal contral has been in place in Kingston Maurward College for the year
ended 319 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual repert and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corparation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corparation is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's
significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31¢! July 2022 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Carporation.

18



Kingston Maurward College

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control
For the year ended 31 July 2022

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on the framewaork of regular management information, administrathe
procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular,
it imcludes:

« Comprehensive budgefing systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the
governing body,

« Reqular reviews by the goveming body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasis;

s Sefting targets to measure financial and other performance;

» Clearly defined capital investiment control guidelines; and

+ The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

The College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA's
Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks
1o which the Cellege is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis
af risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit &
Assurance Cormmittes. At minimum, annually, the Head of Infernal Audit (H1A) provides the governing body
with a report on internal audit activity in the College.

The report includes the HIA's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s
system of risk management, controls and govermance processes.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The Corporation has appointed and Audit & Assurance Committee which identifies, evaluales and manages
risk by regularly reviewing the Corporate Risk Register which is updated by the College’s Risk Management
Group. The Corporation receives the Corporate Risk Register and is assured by the Audit & Assurance
Committes that the risks are being appropriately managed. The Chair of the Audit and Assurance
Committee aftends the Risk Management Group meetings which are held on a termly basis to review the
Corporate Risk Register in detail, Going forward the Risk Register will be linked to the strategic aims of the
College with each risk being mapped to different Corporation commitiees to review the relevant risks. The
main risks to the College are identified under the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of this report on

page o

The Audit and Assurance Committee sets a programme of internal audit reviews, carried out by externally
appointed auditors, to evaluate performance and risk for different areas of the College on an annual basis.
All reports are reviewed by the Commitiee and an Annual Audit Committee report produced for submission
to the Corporation.

Control weaknesses identified

The Annual Internal Audit report identified two key risks relating IT Data Security and Disaster Recovery
Arrangements. The first is with regard to the |CT Security Policy, which was due for review in 2018, The
recommendation was that a comprehensive review of IT securily policies should take place. The response
from the College was that all IT policies have now been reviewed and condensed into one over-arching IT
policy, which was updated in July 2022,

The second key risk identified was with regard to business continuity and IT disaster recovery. The
recommendation was that these arrangamants should be tested, and the plans reviewed and updated. The
rasponse from the College was to confirm that backups are regularly performed, and the business cantinuity
plan was updated in September 2022,
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Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Carporation of the College has mel its responsibilities under funding agreements through due diligence
and appropriate corporate governance models and activities. The Corporation has at all times co-operated
with the requirements of contracts provided for and by the ESFA and applied appropriate audit assurance
and recovery of funds for the ESFA where required, Appropriate carte and due diligence has been applied
in the dedivery of funded activities to ensure they meet the requirements of the ESFA, alongside the needs
of any additional requirements dependent on the funding models, stream or partners involved. These
requirements are monitored through ters of assurance, including the Senior Management Team,
appropriate Corparation committees such as Finance & Resources and Audit & Assurance, and a third tier
o internally support audit carrelating with external audit activity if undertaken,

The College has complied with all of its funding agreements,

The Audit & Assurance Commiliee has advised the board of governors that the Caorperation has an effective
framework for govenance and risk management in place. The Audit & Assurance Committee believes the
Corporation has effective internal contrels in place. The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit &
Assurance Committee in 2021/22 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements are:

1. ESFA Mock Funding Audit Reasonable Assurance Opinkon
2. Commercial Income Strategy Reasonable Assurance Opinion
3. IT Data Security, Infrastructure and

Disaster Recovery Reasonable Assurance Opinlon
4. HR Performance Management Framework Substantial Assurance Opinion
5. Curriculum Efficiency and Teaching Staff

Utilisation Feasonable Assuranca Opinion
6. Management Information and KP| Reasonable Assurance Opinion
B. Follow Up Reasanable Assurance Opinion

Statement from the audit committee

The audit & assurance committee has advised the board of governaors that the corporation has an effective
framework for governance and risk management in place. The audit & assurance committee believes the
carporation has effective internal controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the audit & assurance committee in 2021/22 and up to the date
af the approval of the financial statements are;

Kingston Maurward College = Internal Audit Opinions and Mo of
Recommendations 2021/22 recommendations &
Fl

Ref | Audit TRle Design Application! | Overall M L .

: Compliance | Asswance L
1, ESFA Mock Funding Audit | Adeqguale ﬁi:[&quﬁl-n. Reascnable | O 1 5 ]
2, | Commercial Income | Adequate | Good Reascnabla | O 3 0 i]
.| Strategy :

3. |IT  Data  Security, Reas m ble {2 |1 1 |0
Infrasbruciure and Disaster ; i
Recovery

4, HR Pearformance

Managemenl Frafmiswark

Substantial |0 |2 |0 |0

g, Curriculurm  Efficlency  and Reasonable | O i 1 L]

| Teaching Staff Ulilisation e ; ;

. Managemenl Informaltion Reazonabde | 0 2 ] 1]
and KP| it

8. | Follow-up of Pravious A A, Reasonable | 0 5 3 o
Indernal Audit Sl i
Recommendations o

Total Number of Recommendations 2 15 10 1]
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has respensibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of

imternal contral. His review of the effectivensss of the system of internal control is informed by

s The work of the internal auditors;

s The work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework

« Comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant for regularity
assurance, the appointed funding avditors (for colleges subject to funding audit) in their management
letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control by the Audit & Assurance Committee, which oversees the work of the
internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

The Principal and senior management team receives reports setling out key performance and risk indicators
and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are
embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Principal and senbor
management team and the Audit & Assurance Committee also receive regular repons from internal audit
and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.

The Audit & Assurance Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements
for internal control. The Corporation’s agenda includes a regular ftem for consideration of risk and controd
and receives reports thereon from the senior management team and the Audit & Assurance Commities.
The emphasis is on cbiaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At
its December 2022 meeting the Corparation will carry out the annual assassment for the year ended 31 July
2022 by considering documentation from the senior management team and internal audit and taking account
of events since 31 July 2022,

Based on the advice of the Audit & Assurance Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of
the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, nsk management
and control, and has fulfiled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficien use of resources, the
solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their assels”.

Appraved by order of the members of the Corpaoration on 27" February 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

@{w‘w’

Robert Lasseler Luke Rake
Chair Accounting Officer
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Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As accounting officer | confirm that the corporation has had due regard to the requirements of grant funding
agreements and contracts with ESFA and has considered its responsibility to natify ESFA of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding.

| confirm on behalf of the corporation that after due enquiry, and 1o the best of my knowledge, | am able to
ientify any material imegular or improper use of funds by the corporation, or material non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding, under the corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with
ESFA, or any other public funder.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding noncompliance have been
discovered to date, If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to
ESFA.

¢ Rake
Accounting Officer

Statement of the chair of governors

On behalf of the corporation, | confirm that the accounting officer has discussed their staterment of regularity,
propriety and compliance with the beard and that | am content that it s materially accurate.

& sty

Robert Lasseter
Chair of Governors
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The members of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, the
corporation Is required to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
performance and position of the corporation for the relevant period. Corporations must also prepare a
strategic report which includes an operating and financial review for the year. The bases for the preparation
of ihe financial statements and strategic report are the Staternent of Recommended Practice — Accounting
for Further and Higher Education, ESFA's College Accounts Direction and the UK's Generally Accepled
Accounting Practice. In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is required o

select suitable accounting podicles and apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» assess whether the corporation |5 a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions,
gualifications or mitigating actions, as appropriate (which must be consistent with other disclosures in
the accounts and auditor's repaort); and

« prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate o assume that the
Caollege will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a strategic report, in accordance with paragraphs 3.23 to 3,27
of the FE and HE SORP, that describes what it is trying to do and how it is going about i, including
information about the legal and administrative status of the corporation,

The corporation is respansible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reascnable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the corporation and which enable it to ensure that the iinancial
statements are prepared in accordance with relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education
Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that
are reasonably cpen to it to safequard its assels and to prevent and detect fraud and other irmegularities.

The corporation is responsible for the maintenance and Integrity of its website(s); the work carried out by
auditors does not invelve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have ccourred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on
the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern them. In
addition, thay are responsible for ensuring that funds from ESFA, and any other public funds, are used only
in accordance with ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts and any other conditions, that may be
prescribed from time to time by ESFA, or any other public funder. Members of the corporation must ensure
that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds
and ensure they are used propery. In addition, members of the corporation are responsible for securing
aconomic, efficient and effective management of the corporation’s resources and expenditure so that the
benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from ESFA and other public bodies are
not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 27" February 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

ﬁ_gm"w

= -

Robert Lasseter
Chair of Governors
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Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of Kingston Maurward College (the ‘parent corporation’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 July 2022 which comprise the Consofidated and Collega
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves,
the Consolidated and College Balance Sheats, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to
the financial statements, including 2 summary of significant accounting policles. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education (the 'FE HE SORP') and the College Accounts
Direction for 2021 to 2022,

In our apinion, the financial stalements:
= give a true and fair view of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 July 2022 and of the group’s income
and expanditure, gains and losses, changes in reserves and cash flows, for the year then ended;
* have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the FE HE SORP, College Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022 and the Office for Students’ Accounts Direclion,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of the
group in accordance with the athical reguiremeanis that are relevant ko our audit of the financial statemeants
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled aur other ethical respensibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate o provide a basis for our opinon.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 1 to the financial statements concerning the College’s ability to continue as
8 Qoing concermn,

The College entered into an Emergency Funding agreement with the DIE on the 20th December 2023. This
provides for up io £1.5m of operational support, fo be drawn as and when required.

The College is working with the ESFA and FE Commissioner in order o deliver & long-term solution to the
College’s challenges and this is to be secured through a business combination with another Further
Education provider. Work Is proceeding to bring this about for execution on the 1st August 2024, The
Emergency Funding agreement also provides financial support for the College and with the business
combination related costs. However, if the business combination were not to proceed, further emergency
funding would need to be sought, for the college to remain a going concern.

These conditions along with the other matters explained in note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cause significant doubt about the College's ability to continue
as a going concem. The financial statements do not contain the adjustments that would result if the College
was unable o confinue as a going concemn,

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the college’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of tha financial statements is appropriate.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members with respect to going concemn are described in
the relevant sections of this report,

24



Kingston Maurward College

Independent auditors’ report to the corporation of Kingston Maurward
College

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Consolidated Annual Report and Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
slatermants, of our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materally misstated. |f we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to delermine
whether there is a material misstatemant in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
thiz other informalion, we are reguired to report that fack,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice
lssued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency ('ESFA') requires us o report to you if, in cur opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not bean kept by the group, or retumns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
= the group's financial statements ara not in agreament with the accounting records and returns; or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction
In our opinion:
# funds from whatever source administered by the corporation for the specific purposes have baen
applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation; and
» funds provided by the Office for Students ('OfS") and Research England have been applied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions and any other terms and conditions altached to
them.
We have nothing to repost in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Office for Students'
Accounts Direction requines us to report to you if, in our opinion:
« the corporation’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, has
been materially misstaled; or
« tha corporation’s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been
materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the corporation

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibiliies of the Members of the Corporation, the
corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the corporation determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or
BITO,

In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is responsible for assessing the corporation's ability
io continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the corporation either intend to liquidate the corporation or to
cease operations, or have no realistic allernative but ta do so.

Auditor's responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not @ guaraniee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatemant when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the agaregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect materal misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including frawed. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

» the nature of the sector, control environment and the corporation's performance:

= resulls of our enquiries of management and the members, including the commiltees charged with
governance over the corporation’s finance and control, about their cwn identification and assessment
of the risks of irregularities;

= any matiers we idenfified having oblained and reviewed the corporation's documentation of their
policies and procedures relating to identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations
and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance; detecting and respending to the
risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; the internal
controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

= how the corporation ensured it met its obligations arising from it being financed by and subject to the
govemance requirements of the ESFA and OfS, and as such material compliance with these
obligations is required to ensure the corporation will continue to recelve its public funding and be
authorised to oparate, including around ensuring there is no material unauthorized use of funds and
expendibure;

* how the group and parent corporation ensured It met its obligations to its principal regulatar, the
Secretary of State for Education; and

= the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and invalving relevant internal corporation
specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential
indicators of fraud.

In commeon with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required 1o perform specific procedures to respond
to the risk of management override. We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
frameworks that the corporalion eperates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had
a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key
laws and regulations we considerad in this context included the College Accounts Direction, the Office for
Students’ Accounts Direction, and the FE HE SORP.

In addition, we considered provisions of ather laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the
financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the corporation's ability to operate
or to avold a material penalty. These included safeguarding regulations, data protection regulations,
cccupational health and safety regulations, education and inspections legistation, and employment
legiskation,

Cur procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

» reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess the
recognition of revenue,

= enguiring of corporation’s management and members conceming actual and potential iitigation and
Claims;

= performing procedures to confirm material compliance with the requirements of the ESFA and O1S;

= performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstalement due to fraud;

= reading minutes of meatings of the members and reviewing internal control reports; and

26



Kingston Maurward College

Independent auditors’ report to the corporation of Kingston Maurward
College

» in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness
of journal entries and other adjustments; and assessing whether the judgements made in making
accounting estmates are indicative of a potential bias.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement
team members and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audil

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all imegularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This
risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irmegularifies occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud
involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the corporation, In accordance with Article 22 of the Collega’s Articles of
Gavernment. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation those matters
we are required to stale to it in an auditors repert and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accepl or assume responsibility to anyone other than the corporation, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.,

Bishop Fleming LLP
Salt Quay House
Plymouth

PL4 DBN

Date: 28 February 2024
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Reporting accountant's assurance report on regularity to the
Corporation of Kingston Maurward College (“the College”) and
Secretary of State for Education acting through Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 30 June 2021 and further to the requirements
and conditions of funding in ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public
funder, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come
to our altention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Kingston Maurward College during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to
the purposes identified by Parfiament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-18 Audit Code of Practice {the Code) issued by
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder.

This report is made solely to the corporation of Kingsion Maurward College and ESFA in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation
of Kingston Maurward College and ESFA those matiers we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept, or assuma, responsibiity to anyone other
than the corporation of Kingsten Maurward College and ESFA for our work, for this repart, or for the
conclusion we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of Kingston Maurward College and the reporting accountant

The Corporation of Kingston Maurward College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further &
Higher Education Act 1892, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that
expendilure disbursed, and income received is applied for the purpeses intended by Parfiament and the
financial ransactions conform to the authorities which govern them

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirerments of the Code, We repart to you whether anything has come to our attenfion in carmying out our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed, and income received during the
period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have naot been applied o purposes intended by Parliament or that the
firancial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued jointly by the ESFA. We performed a
limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information
and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence lo express a negative conclusion
an regutarity and propriety.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurancs that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a positive
opnian.

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the College’s
income and axpanditure,

The wark underfaken 1o draw our conclusion includes:

An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriely across the College's aclivities;
Evaluation and validation of the processes and conirols in place to ensure regularity and propriely
for the use of public funds, including the consideration of the College’s self-assessment
questionnaire (SAQ);

+ Testing transactions with related parties;

« Sample testing of income o ensure that funds have been applied for the purposes that they were
awarded, focused on areas assessed as high risk;
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« Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its procurement
policies and thal these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

« Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and delermining whether it was
significant encugh to be referenced to our regularity report.

The list is not exhaustive, and wa performed additional procedures designed to provide us with sufficient
appropriate evidence to express @ limited assurance conclusion on regularity consistent with the
requirements of the Code

Conclusion

Ini the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed, and income recedved during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parkament, and that the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities that gowvarn them.

Bishop Fleming LLP
Salt Quay House
Plymouth

PL4 OBN

Date: 28 February 2024
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Kingston Maurward College

Consolidated and College Statements of Comprehensive Income for

the year ended 31 July 2022

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts
Other income

Investment income

Donations and Endowments
Total incomae

EXPEMDITURE

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs
Total expenditure

(Deficit) before other gains

Gain on disposal of assels
{Deficit) before tax
Taxation

(Deficit) for the year

Actuarial gainf{loss) in respect of pensions
Total comprehensive incomef{expense) for

the year

Motes

= O O F= L R

S o

12

11

24

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2022 31 July 2021
Group College Group College
£'000 E'000 £'000 E'Don
4 568 4,988 4.799 4,799
411 411 706 706
1,067 1,067 1,143 1,122
4,178 3,850 2,038 1,869
18 18 ag 38
10,660 10,134 B,722 8,534

6 790 6,780 6,305 6,305
4,691 4,448 3,793 3,630
G086 606 662 BE2
. 283 283 214 214
12,370 12,125 10,974 10,811
{1,710} {1,991) |2,252) {2,277)
15 15 - -
{1,695) {1,9786) {2,252) (2,277)
(1,695) (1,976) (2,252) (2,277)
10,783 10 783 514 514
9,088 8,807 {1,738) (1,763)

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.
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Mon-current assets
Tangible Fixed assels
Intangible Fixed asseis

Current assoets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Creditors = amounts falling due within
one yaar

Mot current (labilities)

Total assets less current labilities

Creditors = amounts falling due afler more
than one year

Provisions
Defined banafit obligations
Total net assetsiiliabilities)

Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account
Revaluation resarve

Total unrestricted reserves

Motes  Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
£°000 £'000 E'000 E£'000

12 20,571 20,571 15819 15,819

12 105 105 141 441

20,676 20,676 15,960 15,960

14 555 537 502 480

16 1,502 1,531 612 743

H 452 354 1,008 1,005

2,603 2,422 2,123 2,238

16

(3,865) (3,927)  (2,628) (2,708)
{1,262) (1,505) {505) (467)
19,414 19,171 15,456 15,493
17 (14,331} (14,331) 19,942) {9,942)
24 (2,581) (2,581) (12,098} (12,099
2 502 2,259  (5586)  (5,548)
{1,768) (2,011) (10,876) (10,837
4,270 4,270 4289 4288
2,502 2,259 (6,586) (6,548)

The financial statemants on pages 29 o 54 were approved and authorised for issue by the corporation on
270 February 2024 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:

@{rw

Fobert Lasseter
Chair

Luke Rake

Accounting Officer
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves for the
year ended 31 July 2022

Income and Revaluation Total
expenditure reserve
account
E'000 E'000 E'000
Group
Balance at 1 August 2020 (9,156) 4,308 (4,B485)
{Deficit) from the income and expendiiure account (2,262 (2,252)
Other comprehensive income 514 . 514
Transfers between revaluation and Income and
expendilure resernves
19 (s -
(1.719) (19) {1,738}
Balance at 31 July 2021 (10,875) 4,280 (6,586)
{Deficit) from the income and expenditure account
(1,695) (1,695)
Other comprehensive income 10,783 . 10,783
Transfers between revaluation and Income and
expenditure reservas
19 (18} =
Total comprehensive income 5 2107 AL 9,088
Balance at 31 July 2022 (1,768) 4,270 2,502
College
Balance at 1 August 2020 {9.093) 4,308 (4,785)
Surplus/(deficit) from the incoma and expenditure
acecount (2.277) (2,277)
Other comprehensive expense 514 514
Transfers between revaluation and Income and
expanditure reserves
S | (18] =
- (1,744) (18) (1,763)
Balance at 31 July 2021 (10,837) 4,288  (6,548)
{Deficit) from the income and expenditure account (1.976) {1.976)
Other comprehansive income 10.783 10,783
Transfers between revaluation and Income and
expandilure reserves 18 (18)
Total comprehensive income 'B.826 (19) 8,807
Balance at 31 July 2022 B (2,011) 4,270 2,259
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Kingston Maurward College

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes 2022 2021
E'000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
{Deficii) for the year (1,698) (2,.252)
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 606 B62
Deferred capital grants released o income (267) (243)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (57) (128)
{Increasa)/decrease in debtors (980) 56
Increasef{decrease) in creditors due within one year 1.025 a27
Pensions costs less contributions payable 1,075 953
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Interest payable 283 214
Gain on sale of fived assels 15 s .
Met cash flow from operating activities 5 189
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels 11 -
Deferred capital granis received 5,248 614
Payments made to acquire fixed assets (5,334) (643
(80) (29)

Cash flows from financing activities
Intarast paid (92) (54
Interest element of finance lease rental payments {2) (2)
Mew unsecured loans - 1,200
Repayments of amounts borrowed {351} (186)
Capital elernent of finance lease rental payments (37 7]

(482) 951
Increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year (557) 1111
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19 1,009 (102}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 462 1,009
Increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year (557) 1,111
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Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 July 2022

1. Accounting policies
General Information

Kingston Maurward Coflege was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 The Caollage
is situated one mile easl of Dorchester in Dorset and offers a range of full and part time courses and
specialses in land based and related subjects. As part of its educational rale the College runs a 750 acre
mixed farm, equestrian cenfre and counfryside visitor atiractions.

Statement of accounting policies and estimation technigues

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with ilems which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice. Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts
Direction for 2021-22 and in accordance with Financial Reperting Standard 102 — "The Financial Reparting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland® (FRS 102). The Callege is a public
benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. |t also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's
accounting poliches.

Basis of accounting
The financial statemants are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the college and its subsidiary, Kingston Maurward Enterpeises
Limited, controlled by the group. Control is achieved where the group has the pewer o govemn the financial
and operaling policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Under the purchase method of
accounting, the results of subsidiary and associated undertakings acquired or disposed of during the year
arg included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from or up o the date on which control of
the undertaking passes. |nira-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation.

In accordance with FRS 102, the aclivilies of the student union have not bean consolidated because the
college does not control those activities.

Going concern

The financial position of the College group, its cash flow, liquidity and borrowings are presented in the
Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. The College's financial statements have been prepared on
a going concermn basis which assumes thal the College will be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business,

However; the College breached its banking covenants relaling to the year ended 31* July 2022 with both
NatWest and Barclays. Both banks issued waivers for these breaches. In Seplember 2022, the college
entered into an agreament with NafWest to consolidate all its loans other than its LEP loan. The new loan
is for £2.4m repayable over a period of 20 years.

The College entered inlo an Emergency Funding agreement with the DIE on the 20th December 2023. This
provides for up to £1.5m of operational support, to be drawn as and when required,
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The College is working with the ESFA and FE Commisssoner in order to defiver a long-term solution to the
College's challenges and this is to be secured through a business combination with another Further
Education provider. Work is proceeding to bring this about for execution an the 1st August 2024, The
Emergency Funding agreament also provides financial support with the business combination related costs
incurred up to the date of the execution of that solufion.

The College has prepared forecasts to July 2025 which shows that, with tha Emergency Funding support
agreed with the DfE, the College will hold sufficient funds to operate and pay its liabilities as they fall due up
to at least February 2025. Given this, the members of the Corporation have concluded that the College is a
going concern, and the accounis should be prepared on a going concern basis. However, there is the
axistence of materal uncertainty due to the possible collapse of the business combination solution. Althouwgh
the existing Emergency Funding arrangement could sustain the College up to at least February 2025, a
further arrangement would need to be sought for the following period, and that would cast a new doubt on
the College's ability to continue as a going concern.

Recognition of income
Ravenua gram funding

Government revanue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other granis are accounted for under
the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102, Funding body recurrent granis are measured in line with best
estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. The
final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the
funding body following the yvear end, and the results of any funding audits. 18-18 funding is not subject to
reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments.

The recurrent grant from Office for Students repreasents the funding allocations attributable to the current
financial yaar and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Where part of a government grant s deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred income within
creditors and allocated between credifors due within one year and creditors due after more than one year

as appropriate,

Grants (incleding research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the
Collage is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been mel. Income received in
advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income wathin creditors on
the balance sheel and released to income as the conditions are med.

Capital grani funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the
expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Other, non-
governmental capital grants are recognised in when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any
performance refated conditions being met,

Incoma received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as defermed income
within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released fo income as conditions are met,

Fee incoma

Income from fuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the
pericd for which i s recebred.

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the pariod in which
it is earned on a receivable basis.
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Agency arrangements

The College acls as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds. Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded fram
the income and expanditure of the College whera the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal
economic benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for pest-employment benefits

Fost-employment benefits lo employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans which
are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pensian.

Teachers” Pensian Scheme (TFS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined
by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised
as an expense in the income staternent in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Dorsel Local Governmen! Pension Schevme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS
lkabilities are measured using the projected unit credit mathed and discounted at the current rate or return
on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations
are oblained at least triennially and updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged o operating
surplus are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme intreductions, benefit changes, seftlements
and curtailments, They are included as part of the staff costs incurred,

Met interest on the defined benefit Rability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and comprises the intarest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income in the scheme
assels, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the
rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference batween the interest income on scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assels is recognised in interest and other finance costs.

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses.
Short term Employment benefits

Shart term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised
as an expensa in the year in which the employess render services to the College. Any unused benefits are
accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects lo pay as a result of the unused
entitherment.

Enhancoed Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension o a former member of staff is pald by the Callege
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former
member of staff is charged in full to the college's income in the year that the member of staff retires. In
subsequent years a charge is made to pravisions in the balance sheel.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Certain itemns of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the
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FE HE SORP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that
revaluation.

Whare parts of a fixed asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of fixed
assets,

Land amnd buidings

Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:
- Freshald buildings — 50 years
- Agricultural buildings = 20 years
Leasehold buildings — 50 years or shorler dependent an the length of the lease
- Rafurbishments — 5 or 10 vears depending on the nature of the refurbishment

Freshald land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life.

Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expacted useful economic life to the College of batwean 20
and 50 years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of
thedr useful economic life of between 20 and 50 years,

A review for impairment of a fixed assel is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transithonal provision to refain the book value of land and
bulidings, which were revalued in 2015

Assoels under construction

Assats under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects' certificates and other
direct costs, incurred to 31 July, They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expendifure on existing fixed assels

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to the
income in the period it i incurred in, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which cast it is
capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis,

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the pericd of
acquisition, All other equipment is capitalised al cost.

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as
follovwes:

Plant and equipment — 5 years on a straight-line basis

Vahicles - & vears on a straight-line basis

Computer equipment = 5 years on a straighi-line basis

Furniture, fixtures and fittings — 10 years on a siraight-ine basis.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as mpairments, Impairment losses are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expendifura.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets costing more that £1,000 are capitalised and recognised when fulure economic banafits
are probable, and the cost or value of the assel can be measured reliably. Amortisation is provided on
intangible fixed assats at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expacted usaful life as
follones:

Purchased computer software and softwara development costs — 5 years on a straight-line basis
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.
Leased assets

Cosls in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incantives relating to leases signed
after 1" August 2014 are spread aver the minimum lease term.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an
assal are freated as finance lepses,

Assets held under finance leases are recognised inltially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, If lower,
the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding lability to
the lessor is included in the balanos sheet as an obligation under finance leases. Assats held under financa
leases are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessad for impairment losses in the
same way as owned assels

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance charges are allocated over the period of Ihe lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial statements.
Inventories

Farm stocks consist of vestock and crops and have been valued by independent valuers using recognised
valuation methods and included in the balance sheet at the percentages of market value as recommended
by HMRC Business Income Manual (BIM55410 — Farming stock valuation IR232). Other stocks have been
valued at the bower cost and net realisable value. Where necessary, pravision is made for ohsolete, slow-
moving and defective stocks.

Cash and Cash eguivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafls. Deposits are repayable on
dgemand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty,

Cash equivalants are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounis of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies ag a cash equivalent when it has
maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition,

Financial liabilities and ecquity

Financial liabdlities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.

Allloans, investments and short-term deposits held by the group are classified as basic financial instrumeants
in accordance with FRS 102, These instruments are initially recorded at the fransaction price less any
transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, howewver the college has calculated that the difference batwean the historical
and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial instruments are stated on the balance shesat
at historical cosl. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted,
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Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK Corporation Tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Callege is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 258 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are appled exclusively to charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 3% of the
VAT charged on its inputs. Imecoverable VAT an inpuls is included in the costs of such inpuls and added
to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fived assels by
nature.

The College's subsidiary company is subject to Corporation Tax and VAT in the same way as any
commercial organisatson.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when:
. fthe College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
- itis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to setile the obligation, and
- Arefiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
a finance cost in the statemaent of comprehensive incoma in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence
will anly be confirmed by the occumence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the confrol
of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made
but either is not probable that an overflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent Eabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements,

Judgement in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financlal statements, management have made the following judgements.

» Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating
or finance leases. Thesa decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks

« and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease-by-lease
basis.

« Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College's tangible assets. Factors
taken Into consideration in reaching such a decision Include the economic viability and expected
future financial performance of the asset and where it is @ companent of a larger cash generation
unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit

Oither key sources of esiimalion uncertainly

= Tangible fixed asseis, other than invesltment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives
taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assels and residual
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing
asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into
account. Residual value assessments conslder issues such as future market condiions, the
remaining kife of the asset and projecied disposal values.
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= The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an annual actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions
The assumplions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate.
Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount
of the pension liability. The actuary has used a roll forward approach which projects results from
the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2018 has been used by the actuary in
vaiuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2022, Any differences between the figures derived from the
rell forward appreach and a full actuarial valuation would impact the carrying amount of the pension

liability.

Za  Funding body grants

Recurrent grants

Edueation and Skills Funding Agency - adult

Education and Skilis Funding Agency - 16 -18
Education and Skills Funding Agency - apprenticeships®
Office for students

Specific Grants

Covid 18 testing grant

Teacher pension scheme contribution grant
Releases of government capital grants
Total

*Inchedos impacl of ESFA clawbad

2b  Grant and fee income

Grant income from the Office for Students
Fee income for taught awards (exclusive of VAT)
Tatal

3 Tuition fees and education contracts

Sdult education fees

Fees for FE loan supported courses
Fees for HE loan supported courses
Total tuition feas

Education contracts

Total

40

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

2022 2022 2021 20
Group College Group Collage
£°000 £'000 E°000 E'000
173 173 466 466

4 468 4. 468 4,240 4240
(130} {130) {400} (400)
B0 &0 83 a3

- - 21 21

130 130 136 136
267 267 243 243
4,988 4,988 4,799 4,798

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

2022 2022 2021 2029
Group College Group  College
E'000 E’000 E'000 E'0OD
BO 80 83 &

223 223 430 430
303 303 523 523

Year ended 31 July  Year ended 31 July

2022 2022 2021 2021
Group College Group College
E'00 E'000 £'000 £'000
48 49 139 138

128 f2c 117 117
223 223 430 430
401 401 BREG GasG
10 10 20 20
411 411 708 706
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Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
4  Other grants and contracts

2022 2022 2021 2021

Group College Group  College

E'DDD E'000 E"000 £'000

Other grant income 1,067 1,087 1,062 1,062
Coranavirus Job Retenfion Scheme grant - . a1 70
Total 1,067 1,067 1,143 1,122
5§ Other income Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2022 2022 2021 2021

Group  College Group College

£1000 E'000 E£°000 £'000

Residencies and catering 163 228 141 141
Farming aclivities 788 788 587 La7
Other income generating aclivities 1,781 aar 810 G610
Oiher income 1,484 1,746 388 521
Total 4176 3,650 2,036 1,869

1] Investment income
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July

2022 2022 2021 2021
Group Collage Group College
000 E£'000 E'000 E'000
Other imsastment income = . -
7  Donations - College only
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2022 3 July 2021
E'000 E'000
Unrestricted donations 18 34
Total 18 3a
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B Staff costs - Group and College
The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the College during the
year was:
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2022 31 July 2021
Mo. Mo,
Teaching staff a 77
Non-teaching staff ] 176 141
B 257 218
2022 2021
Staff costs for the above persons E'000 E'D0D
Wages and salaries 5.B65 4, 388
Social security costs 362 318
Other pension costs 763 1443
Fayroll sub total &,790 6,130
Contracted out staffing senvices 40
6,790 6,170
Restructuring costs - cantractual - - B 135
6,790 6,305
The corporation does not have any salary sacrifice arrangements in place.
Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and contralling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Senior Management Team
which comprises the Principal, Deputy Principal, Assistant Principal and Finance Direclor. Staff costs
Include compensation paid to key management persannel for loss of office
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and
other higher paid staff
2022 2021
M. M.
The number of key management perscnnel including the Accounting
Officer was: 2 3
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The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emaluments, excluding
pension contributions and employers’ national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges
was:

Senior post-  Other staff

holders
2022 201 2022 2021
No. No. No. No.
EE0,001 to £85,000 p.a, 1 2 - -
E85,001 to £90,000 p.a. - - - .
£080,001 to £85.000 p.a. - - - -
£95,001 to £900,000 p.a. - = - =
£100,001 to £105,000 p.a. 1 L - -
2 3 -
Key management personnel compensation is made up as
fallows.
2022 2021
£'000 E'000
Basic salary 237 204
Pension contributions . 32
Total key managament personnel compensation 268 235

The above compensation includes amounts paid to the Principal and Chief Executive who is the

accounting officer and whao is alsa the highest pad member of staff. Their pay and remuneration are as
follows:

2022 2021

£'000 £°000

Basic salary 101 101
Pension contribulions - 10
101 111

The governing body adopted AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and assess pay in line
with ifs principles,

The remuneration package of key management staff, including the Principal and Chief Executive, is subject
to annual review by the Governance Remuneration & Search Committee of the goveming body who
undertake an annual review of performance against the college’s overall objectives using both qualitative
and guanfitative measures of performance.

Relationship of Principal/Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple

2022 202

E'000 E'000
Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff £.3 5.8
Principal and CEO's total remuneration as a multiple of the median 4.6 5.0

of all staff
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8a Other operating expenses

Teaching costs
Maon-teaching costs
Premises costs

Total

Other operating expenses include:

Auditors' remuneration;

Financial statemeants audit*

Internal audit**

Other services provided by the external auditors
Hire of assets under operating leases

*includes £36k in respect of the college (2021 £48k)
**includes £17k in respact of the college (2021 £6k)

8b  Access and Participation Plan
Access investment
Financial Suppart

Disability Support
Research and Evaluation

10 Interest payable - Group and College

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans:
On finance leases
Net interest on defined pansion liability (note 24)

Total

11 Taxation - Group Only

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
July July
2022 2022 2021 2021
Group  College Group College
£'000 £'000 £°000 E'000
801 801 il G52
2,881 2,736 2,333 2170
a8 808 798 798
4,681 4,448 3,793 3,630
2022 2021
£'000 E£'000
41 53
25 17
1 F)
215 121
2022 2021
£°000 E'000
8 I
16 16
3 3
27 26
2022 2021
£'000 £°000
g2 54
1 1
180 158
283 214

The members do not believe that the College was llable for any corporation tax arising out of its activities

during either year,
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12a) Tangible fixed assets (Group and College)

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 20219
Additions

Disposals
At 31 July 2022

Depreciation

A1 August 2021

Charga for the year
Disposals

At 31 July 2022

Met book value at 31 July 2022

Met book value at 31 July 2021

Inherited

Financed by capital grant

Other

Met book value at 31 July 2022

Land and Buildings Assets in the
Freehold Long Equipment course of TOTAL
leasehald construction

E'D00 E"000 £'000 E'000 E'00
20,663 130 4,782 442 26,017
13 - 280 4,818 £330

= = (53) - (5
20,794 130 ~ 5019 5,360 31,303
g,122 73 4,003 - 10,198
395 - 175 570
S S _(36) 2 (¥6)
6,517 T3 4,142 - 10,732
14,277 57 877 5,360 20,571
14,541 6T 779 442 15,819

Land and Buildings Assets in the
Frechold Long Equipment  course of TOTAL
leasehold construction

£°000 £'000 E*00a £'000 £'0o0
4,024 - - - 4,024

6,024 - 728 5,303 12,855
3,329 57 149 57 3,582

14,277 57 877 5,360 20,571

Included in assets in the tolal for assets in the course of construction are the two capital projects - University
Centre and the Ground Source Heat Pump, as well as software development,

Inherited land and buildings were valued for the purpose of the 1984 financial statements at open market
value in their existing use by a firm of independent chartered surveyors, Symonds and Sampson in August
1902, Other tangible fixed assets inherited from the Local Education Authority as at 1 April 1993 have been
valued by the Corporation on a depreciated cost basis.

Freehold land and buildings with a net book value of £4,053,908 have been funded by exchequer fund
sources, Should these assets be sold, the College may be liable, under the terms of the Financial
Mermorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency to surrender the proceeds,
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12Zb) Intangible fixed assets (Group and College)

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2021
Reclassifications
At 31 July 2022
Depreciation

At 1 August 2021
Charge for the year
At 31 July 2022

Met book value at 31 July 2022

Net book value at 31 July 2021

13 Investments

Software  Assels in the Tatal
course of
construction
E"000 £'000 E'000
285 07 34a2
107 {107) -
592 S—
251 - 251
36 . 36
287 - 287
105 - 105
34 107 141

The College has an investment of £1 (2021: £1) in its wholly owned subsidiary company Kingston

Maurward Enterprises Limited,

14  Stocks

Farm stocks including crops and livestock
Other stocks

Tatal

15  Trade and other receivables

Trade recoivables

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Prapayments and accrued income

Ciher debtars

Recoverable VAT

Total

46

Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
E'000 E£'000 £'000 E'0on
518 519 475 475
40 18 27 15
559 53T 502 480
Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
E£'000 E'000 E"000 £'000
122 63 o o

= - - 133

161 159 159 158

8 B 108 108
1,301 1,301 254 254
1,592 1,531 G612 743
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16  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group College Group College

2022 2022 2021 2021

£'000 £'000 E£'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts 385 365 264 284
Other loans 63 63 62 62
Obligations under finance leases - . 6 &
Trade payables 683 650 167 162
Amounts owed to Subsidiary undertaking - 263 - 158
Other taxation and social securily 180 180 365 365
Accruals and deferred income 541 ara BarT 534
Deferred income - government capital grants 311 31 185 195
Other creditors 232 232 105 32
Amounts owed 1o ESFA 1,480 1,480 aay azv
Tatal 3885 3,927 2,628 2,705

17  Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
£'000 E'000 E'000 £'000
Bank loans 1,814 1,814 2,180 2180
Obligations under finance leases . - 31 21
Other loans 15 15 94 a4
Deferred income - government capital grants 12,502 12,502 7837 18
Total 14,331 14,331 9,942 8,942
18  Maturity of debt
la) Bank and other loans
Bank and other loans are repayable as follows:
Group College Group College
2022 2022 2021 2021
£'000 E"00D £°000 E'000
In ome year or less 428 428 326 328
Between one and two years 3495 3gs 515 515
Between two and five years 728 728 1,454 1.454
In five years or maore 708 T06 305 305
Total
2,267 2257 2,600 2,600

The College had the following loans at the balance sheet date:

NatWest £500k {July 2017 to Dec 2030) rate 2.25% above the base rate; NatWest CBILs £1.2m (Nov 202
to Dec 2026) rate 3.96% above the base rale; Barclays £1.649m (Oct 2017 to Oct 2032) fixed rate 5.5%:;
Darset Local Enterprise Partnership £250k (Nov 2018 to Oct 2023) rate 0.75% above EU reference rate.
The NatWest loan had a supplementary amendment (the original agreermeant being for £650k).
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There are covenants on the NatWest £600k loan and the Barclays loan. The College breached covenants
on both these loans at year-end 31 July 2022

In March 2022 the college entered into an agreement with NatWest to consolidate all its loans other than
the LEP loan. The new loan is £2.49m repayable over a period of 20 year, The agreameant was finalised in
Seplember 2022,

(b) Finance leases
The net finance lease obligatiens to which the instilulion is committed are:

Group College Group College

2022 2022 2021 2021

E£"000 £°000 E"000 E'000

In one year or less . - 9 8

Between one and two years - - L 8

Betwean two and five years - - 18 19
In five years or mong - =

Total A
s - ar 7

Finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate.

19a Cash and cash equivalenis At 1 August Cash At 31
2021 flows July 2022
E'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash eqguivalents 1,009 (3567) 452
Total 1,008 (557) 452
19b Met debt
Group
At 1 August Cash flows Other AL 31 July
2021 changes 2022
£'000 £'000 E"000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand ; 1,009 (557) 452
1,009 (6567) 452
Borrowings
Debt due within one year (415) 343 (354) (426)
Debt dua after one year &S - 868 (183
{2,600) 343 - (2,257)
Total {1,591) (214) . (1,806)
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20 Capital commitments Group and College
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Commitments contracted at 31 July 102 5,306

The commitrnents are with regard io two capital projects which are both fully grant funded. The projects are
the construction of a University Centre and Rural Hub (funded by Dorset LEP) and the instaliation of a
Ground Source Heat Pump funded by Salix. Both projects compbated in summer 2022,

21 Lease Obligations
At 31 July the Gollege had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group and College

2022 2021
£°000 E'D0D

Future minimum lease payments due - Other
Mot later than ane yaar 159 191
Betwean two and five years 126 G5
In five years ar mang i - -
Total lsase payments dus 285 256

Mone of the operaling leases above related to land and buildings.

22 Contingencies

The College does not have any contingent liabilities 1o report

23 Events after the reporting period

On 29th November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations as
public sector institutions,  This decision is refrospective to April 1883 The Department for Education
intfroduced some new rules for colleges with immediate effect.  Mone of these rule changes have a
significant impact on the 2021/22 financial statements of Kingston Maurward College and of its
position at 31 July 2022 The Department for Education is expected to continue to review this change
and issue further guidance over the coming 12 to 24 months, The College will also continue to keep
further changes under consideration

The College is currently undertaking detailed scenario planning, modelling and cost forecasting work
with another local Further Education Provider with a view to combining the two colleges from the 1%
August 2024. This proposition would continue to see the defivery of specialist land-based education
at the Kingston Maurward campus,

The College entered into an Emergency Funding agreement with the DIE on the 20" December
2023, This provides for up to £1.5m of operational support, to be drawn as and when raguired. The
agreement also provides financial support with the business combination related costs incurred up
fo the date of the execution of that solution,
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24 Defined benefit obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers'
Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and redated staff and the Dorset Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are miulti-employer defined-
banafit plans,

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.
The latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was as at 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019,

Total pension cost for the year 2022 2021
£000 EODD

Taachers' Pension Scheme: contributions pald aa1 358

Local Governmant Pansion Scheme:

Confributions paid 401 344

FRS 102 (28) charge 1,075 B53

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income T 1416 4297

Enhanced pension charge o Statement of - -
Comprehensive Income

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff costs 1,857 1,655

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, These regulations apply to
teachers in schools, colleges and other educational establishments. Membership is automatic for
teachers and lecturers at efigible institutions. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis — these
confributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under
arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliament

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan, The
codlege is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabllities of the plan.

Aceordingly, the college has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has aceounted for
its confributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The college has set out
above the information available on the plan and the implications for the college in lerms of the
anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is caried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service
Pension Act 2013. Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of retum
assuming funds ane invested in noticnal investments that produce that real rate of retumn.

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carmied out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education (the Department) in April 2018, The valuation
reported total scheme labilities (pensions eurrently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future
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contributions togather with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £15%8 billion giving
a notional past service deficit of E22 ballion,

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable
pay from September 2018 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/9). DfE has agreed to pay
a teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2021-22
academic year, A full copy of the valeation report and supporting documentation can be found on
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme website,

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £381k (2021 £358k),

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by
Dorset Local Authority. The total confributions made for the year ended 31 July 2022 were E547k,
of which employer's contributions totalled £401k and employees’ confributions totalled £146k. The
agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.3% for the college and range from 5.5% fo 12.5%
for employees, depanding on salary according to & national scale.

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2018
updated to 31 July 2022 by Barnett Waddimgham,

At 31 July At 31 July

2022 2021
Rate of increase in salaries 1.50% 1.50%
Futura pensions incraases 2.80% 2 85%
Digcount rate for scheme liabilibes 3400 1.60%
Inflation assumption (CP1) 2.80% 2.85%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 509%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in
mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 July At 31 July

2022 2021
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 221 2.1
Females 24.2 24.6
Retiring in 20 years
Males 234 24.4
Females 256 28.1
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The college’s share of the assels in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expacied rates of retim

WeTE
Long-term
rate of return
expected at
3 July 2022

Equity instrurments 0.6%

Debt instruments -0.4%

Property -0.1%

Cash 0.0%

Total fair value of plan assets

Weighted average «1.17%
expected long term

rate of return

Actual return on plan

assats

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and

enhanced pensions benefits is as folliows:

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of plan Babilities

Net pensions (liability)

Fair Value at

31 July 2022
E'000

H,608

5,438

1,610

206

15,762

(186)

Long-term
rate of return
expected at
31 July 2021
B.3%

4.33%
3.46%
0.17%

17.3%

2022

E"000
15,762
(18,343)

(2,581)

Fair Value ai
31 July 2021
E'000
8,652
3,842
3178
23

15,891

2,324

2021
£000
15,891
(27.990)

(12,099)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of the plan are as

follows:

Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost

Past service cost

Adminisiration expenses

Total service cost

Less employer contributions
Total

Amounts included in investment income
Met interest income
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2022 2021

£'000 £'000

1,485 1,194

a1

11 =

T 1476 1,285
(401)

1,075 1,285

190 159

190 159
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on pension plan assets
Experience losses arising on defined benefit obligations
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan abilities

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Incoma

Mowvement in net defined benefit (liability) during year

Met defined benefit (Hability)/asset in scheme at 1 August
Movemant in year
Current service cost
Employer contributions
Past servica cost
Administralion expenses
Net interest on the defined (liability)(asset
Actuarial gain or loss
Mat defined benefit (Hability) at 31 July

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations at start of period

Current service cost

Interest cost

Caonlributions by Scheme participants

Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligations
Changes in financial assumplions

Estimated benefits paid

Past Service cosl

Change in demographic assumptions

Defined benefit obligations at end of period
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2022 2021
£'000 E'DDD
(441) 2136
(63) 462
11,287 {2,114)
10,783 514
2022 2021
E'000 E'000

(12,089) {11,501)

[1.465) (1,184)

401 344

o (91)

(11) (12}

(120) {159)

10,783 514

{2,581) {12,099)

2022 2021

E'000 £'000

27,850 24,806

1,465 1,194

445 347

148 130

63 {482)

{10,356) 2413

(479} (200)

. 91

{931) (298

18,343 27,990
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Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 15,801 13,305
Interest on plan assats 265 188
Return on plan assets (441) 2136
Oher actuarial losses - x
Administration expenses {11} {12}
Employer contributions 401 344
Contributions by Scheme participants 146 130
Estimated benefits paid {479) {200)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period ~ 15,762 15891

These accounts show a past service cost of £230 million in respect of the McCloud / Sergeant judgment
wihich ruled that the transitional protection for some members of public service schemes implemented when
they were reformed consfituted age discrimination. This provision is just under 2% of the total scheme
liability as at 31 July 2020. The calculation of adjustment to past service costs, £7 billion, arising from the
outcome of the Court of Appeal judgment Is based on a number of key assumptions including:

the: form of remedy adopted

how the remedy will be implemented

which members will be affected by the remedy

the eaming assumptions

the withdrawal assumplion

The olher financial and demographic assumptions adopted to calculate the past service cost are the same
as those used to calculate the overall scheme lability. Adopting different assumptions or making other
adjustiments lo reflect behavioural changes stemming from the judgment, would be expacted to change the
disclosed past service cost. Similarly, allowing for variations in individual members' fullire senvice or salary
progression s expected to produce higher costs, The past service cost is particularly sensitive to the
difference betwean assumed long term general pay growth and the GPI.

If the long-term salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa lower, then the past service cost disclosed here
would be expected to reduce by 50% and conversely a 0.5% pay increase would increase the estimated
cost by 65%

25 Amounts disbursed as agent Learner support funds (College 2022 2094
iy E'000 E£°000
16-18 bursary grants Al 1
Disbursed to students (111 8)
Administration costs © @
Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in creditors B8 —E

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the college only acts
as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Incoma.
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26 Related Party Transactions
Due to the nature of the college’s operations and the compaosition of the board of governors being drawn fram
local public and private sector organisations, it is inevilable that transactions will take place with organisations
in which a member of the board of governors may have an Interest. All transactions involving such
arganisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the college’s financial regulations and
narmal procurement procedures,

Due to the nature of the college's operations and the composition of the board of governaors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with arganisations
in which @ member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such
organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the college's financial regulations and
marmal procurement procedures

(Income)
MNature of Expenditure
Mamaea Interest Detail EQDD's
Synergy Farm Health Lid Governor is - Expenditure redation to veterinary 37 (28)
a Director services [ income relates to hire of
ieaching rooms and on-site student
accommodation
Landex Land Based Principal as  Expenditure relates to staff training 8
Colleges a Governor, and subscription fees
is @ member
Dorset Local Enterprise Principal, as  Expenditure relates to loan and 21T
Parnership CIC a Governor,  interest repayments [ income relates to

is a member evenf sponsorship
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